
CI Financial

December 2009

United States Securities

and Exchange Commission

Washington D.C 20549

09047521

Sheila Murray

Executive Vice-President

General Counsel and Secretary

Queen Street East Twentieth Floor

Ibronto Ontario M5C 3G7

416-681-1731

416-3650501

smurrav@ ciconi

StiPPL

Dear Sirs ioa44
Re CI EiuancLal oiprfthr-1Company as successor to CI Financial Inc

and CI Financial Income Fund

Rule 12g3-2b under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Your File No 82-4994

The Company is on the SECs list of foreign private issuers that claim exemption pursuant to

Rule 12g3-2b pursuant to which we hereby furnish the enclosed documentation duly marked

with the requisite SEC file number along with Form 6-K

We also enclose the Interim Financial Statements for the period ended September 30 2009

If you have any questions or comments please contact the undersigned

Yours truly

CI FINANCIAL

Sheila Murray

Executive Vice-President

General Counsel and Secretary

SAM/ih

Ends

SEC
Mall ProceSS%fl9

Section

flFfl
Ofl

Washington OG

105

j\ci\cix\ietters\sec-Itr-decO9.doc



Queen Street East Twentieth Floor Toronto Ontario MC 3G7

1iritri.ii1 Telephone.4l6-364-1145 Toll Free 1-800-268-9374

News Release
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE TSX Symbol CIX

CI Financial reports net sales of $191 million in October

TORONTO November 2009 CI Financial Corp CItoday reported net sales of $191

million for the month of October Assets under management at October 31 2009 were $63.7

billion and total fee-earning assets were $92.3 billion

During October CI subsidiaries CI Investments Inc and United Financial Corporation had

combined retail gross sales of $771 million and net sales of $191 million which consisted of net

sales of $196 million in long-term funds and net redemptions of $5 million in money market

funds

At October 31 2009 assets under management consisted of investment funds and structured

products at CI Investments and United Financial of $59.7 billion and institutional assets of $4.0

billion CI also reported assets under administration of $27.8 billion which consisted of $20.4

billion in assets under administration at Assante Wealth Management Canada Ltd and $7.4

billion in assets under administration at Blackmont Capital Inc Other fee-earning assets totalled

$752 million

Additional information about Cls sales assets and financial position can be found below in the

tables of preliminary statistics and on its website www.ci.cornlcix in the Statistics section The

sales and assets reported in this release are the only statistics authorized by CI and CI takes no

responsibility for reporting by any external sources



CI Financial News Release

FEE-EARNING ASSETS Sep 30/09 Oct 1/09

millions miflions Change

Retail assets under management $60612 $59670 -1.6%

Institutional managed assets 4142 4028 -2.8%

TOTAL assets under management $64754 $63698 -1.6%

Assante assets under administration 20815 20429 -1.9%

Blackmont assets under administration 7412 7390 -0.3%

TOTAL assets under admi $28227 -1.4%

CI other fee-earning assets 790 752 -4.8%

TOTAL FEE-EARNING ASSETS $93771 $92269 -1.6%

MONTHLY AVERAGE RETAIL Sep 30/09

ASSETS TINDER MANAGEMENT millions

Monthly average retail assets $59937

Oct 31/09

millions

$60412

Chan2e

0.8%

QUARTERLY AVERAGE RETAIL Sep 30/09

rnhIIiAflcI

Quarterly average retail assets

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT
557.963

FISCAL AVERAGE RETAIL Dec 31/08

AcSETS TINDER MANAGEMENT millions

Oct 31/09

millinnci

Fiscal year average retail assets

$60.412

Change

4.2%

$60208

Oct 31/09

millions

$54197

Chance

-10.0%

EQUI1Y 1INAINCIAL YUSI lION

millions

Total outstanding shares 292171122 Bank debt $765

QTD weighted avg shares 292336593 Cash and marketable securities 29
Yield at $19.09 3.1% Net debt outstanding $736

In-the-money options 6832727 In-the-money option liability net of tax $13

Percentage of all options 99% Terminal redemption value of funds $800

All options of shares 2.3% Quarter-to-date equity-based compensation $4

Includes CI and United Financial investment fund assets administered by Assante advisors

Estimate partially based on marked-to-market pre-tax option expense accrual from change in share price and

vesting from last quarter-end $20.59 to October 31 2009 $19.09

GEOGRAPHIC EXPOSURE OF AUM
Canada 50% Asia 3%

United States 21% Other 4%

Europe 10% Cash 12%

-2-
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CI Financial Corp TSX CIX is an independent Canadian-owned wealth management

company CI offers broad range of investment products and services including an industry-

leading selection of investment funds CI is on the Web at www.ci.comlcix

This press release contains forward-looking statements with respect to Ci and its products and services including

its business operations and strategy and financial performance anti condition Although management believes that

the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable such statements involve risks and

uncertainties Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking

statements Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from expectations include among other

things general economic and market factors including interest rates business competition changes in government

regulations or in tax laws and other factors discussed in materials filed with applicable securities regulatory

authorities from time to time

-30-

For further information contact

Stephen MacPhail

President

416 364-1145
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News Release
TSX Symbol CXC.PR.A FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

CIX Split Corp Announces

Distribution for Month Ending November 30 2009

Toronto November 2009 CIX Split Corp the Corporation announced today

distribution for the month ending November 30 2009 of $0.04167 per Priority Equity Share

payable on November 30 2009 to unitholders of record as at November 15 2009

The Corporations investment objectives for the Priority Equity Shares are to provide

shareholders with fixed cumulative preferential monthly cash distributions in the amount of

$0.04167 per Priority Equity Share to yield approximately 5.0% per annum on the original issue

price and on or about the Termination Date to pay to the holders of Priority Equity Shares the

original issue price of the Priority Equity shares

The Corporations Priority Equity Shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the

symbol CXC.PR.A

For more information please contact CI Investments Inc

416 364-1145

1-800-268-9374
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News Release

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE TSX Symbol CIX

CI Financial announces earnings conference call and webcast

TORONTO November 2009 CI Financial Corp CIwill release its financial results for

the third quarter of fiscal 2009 on Tuesday November 10 2009 The results will be issued on

Canada Newswire and www.ci.comlcix

Chief Executive Officer William Holland will host conference call with analysts that day at

p.m Eastern time The call and slide presentation will be accessible through webcast at

www.ci.cornlg3 Alternatively investors may listen to the discussion by dialling 416 644-3419

or 1-877-974-0447

The call will be available for playback at p.m that day until November 24 2009 at 416 640-

1917 or 1-877-289-8525 passcode 4181192 followed by the number sign The webcast will be

archived at www.ci.comlq3

CI Financial Corp TSX CIX is an independent Canadian-owned wealth management

company with approximately $92.3 billion in fee-earning assets at October 31 2009 CI offers

broad range of investment products and services including an industry-leading selection of

investment funds and is on the Web at www.ci.com/cix

-30-
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News Release
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE TSX Symbol CIX

CI Financial reports third quarter results dividend rate increased 20%

TORONTO November 10 2009 CI Financial Corp CItoday released unaudited financial

results for the quarter ended September 30 2009 The results in the table below exclude the

operations of Blackmont Capital Inc whiCh are now considered discontinued

Quarter ended Quarter ended

September 30 2009 June 30 2009

millions except millions except change

per share amounts per share amounts

Average Retail Assets Under
$57963 $53727

Management

EBITDA1 $141.6 $126.1 12

EBITDA Per Share1 $0.48 $0.43 12

EBITDA Per Share adjustedt2 $0.52 $0.47 11

Net Income $66.4 $53.0 25

Earnings Per Share $0.23 $0.18 28

Earnings Per Share adjusted2 $0.25 $0.21 19

Long-Term Debt $781.0 $871.5 10

SGA expenses adjusted2 42 bps 45 bps

EBITDA Earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization is not standardized earnings

measure prescribed by GAAP however management believes that most of its shareholders creditors

other stakeholders and investment analysts prefer to include the use of this performance measure in

analyzing Cls results Cls method of calculating this measure may not be comparable to siniilar

measures presented by other companies EBITDA is measure of operating performance facilitator for

valuation and proxy for cash flow

2Adjusted for equity-based compensation expense
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Fee-earning assets at September 30 2009 were $93.8 billion up 7% from $87.4 billion at June

30 2009 This increase was attributable to improving markets and positive net sales of funds

Fee-earning assets were comprised of $60.2 billion in investment funds and pools at CI

Investments Inc and United Financial Corporation $0.4 billion in structured products $4.2

billion in institutional managed assets $28.2 billion in dealer assets under administration at

Assante Wealth Management Canada Ltd and Blackmont Capital Inc and $0.8 billion in other

fee-earning assets

At November 2009 Cls retail assets under management totalled $61.5 billion gain of $3.5

billion or 6% over the average level of assets for the third quarter

Gross sales and net sales of funds for the three months ended September 30 2009 were $1.8

billion and $246 million respectively Over the nine-month period ended September 30 2009

Cls net sales were $1.1 billion ranking it fourth in net sales among all Canadian fund

companies Cls average retail assets under management in the third quarter were $58.0 billion

an increase of 8% from $53.7 billion in the second quarter

On October 26 2009 CI announced the sale of Blackmont Capital Inc to Macquarie Group CI

expects the transaction to close by December 31 2009 subject to receipt of standard regulatory

approvals CI is treating Blackmont as discontinued operation and its results are summarized

below income from continuing operations in Cls third quarter report

For the three months ended September 30 2009 CI reported EBITDA per share from continuing

operations of $0.48 an increase of 12% rom $0.43 per share for the three months ended June

30 2009 After adjusting for equity-based compensation expense CI reported $0.52 in EBITDA

per share for the third quarter up 11% fom the prior quarter CI reported earnings per share

from continuing operations of $0.23 in the third quarter of 2009 up 28% from $0.18 in the

second quarter After adjusting for equitfr-based compensation expense CI reported $0.25 in

earnings per share from continuing operations up 19% from the prior quarter

Cls selling general and administrative SGA expenses from continuing operations in the

third quarter adjusted for equity-based compensation expense were 0.42% of average retail

assets under management This figure compares to 0.45% of average retail assets under

management in the second quarter of 2009

At September 30 2009 CI had long-term debt of $781.0 milliondown $218.4 million from the

beginning of the year By November 2409 CI had paid down further $26.0 million of debt

With the closing of the sale of Blackmoiiit CI will use the proceeds to further reduce debt by

approximately $110 million

The Board of Directors approved debt retfinancing proposal which includes public offering of

approximately $500 million under Cls $1 billion shelf prospectus

In other matters the Board of Directors declared monthly cash dividends of $0.06 per share

payable on each of December 15 2009 Jnuary 15 2010 and February 12 2010 to shareholders

of record on November 30 2009 December 31 2009 and January 31 2010 respectively The

-2-
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monthly dividend rate of $0.06 per share is an increase of 20% over the former rate of $0.05 per

share and represents yield of 3.7% on Cls closing share price of $19.25 on November 2009

As of October31 2009 CI had 292174122 shares outstanding

For detailed financial statements for the quarter ended September 30 2009 including

Managements Discussion and Analysis please refer to Cls website at www.ci.cornlcix under

Reports or contact investorrelations@ci.cpm

Analysts Conference Call

Chief Executive Officer William Holland will host conference call and webcast with

analysts today at p.m Eastern time to discuss Cls third quarter results The webcast will

include slide presentation and be available at www.ci.comlg3 Alternatively investors may

listen to the discussion by dialing 416 644-3419 or 1-877-974-0447

The call will be available for playback at p.m until November 24 2009 at 416 640-1917 or

1-877-289-8525 passcode 4181192 followed by the number sign The webcast will be

archived at www.ci.com/g3

CI Financial Corp TSX CIX is an independent Canadian-owned wealth management

company CI offers broad range of investment products and services including an industry-

leading selection of investment funds and is on the Web at www.ci.com/cix

This press release contains forward-looking statenents
with respect to Ci and its products and services including

its business operations and strategy and financiai performance and condition Although management believes that

the expectations reflected in such forward-lookirg statements are reasonable such statements involve risks and

uncertainties Actual results may differ matericlly from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking

statements Factors that could cause actual restlts to differ materially from expectations include among other

things general economic and market factors incliiding interest rates business competition changes in government

regulations or in tax laws and other factors discussed in materials filed with applicable securities regulatory

authorities from time to time

30

Forfurther information

Stephen MacPhail

President

CI Financial Corp

416 364-1145

-3-



Investments
ti Toronto ontario

www.ci.com

News Release
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Skylon Funds Announce Distributions

For Month Ending November 30 2009

Toronto November 18 2009 CI Investments Inc as manager of each of the issuers named

below the Skylon Funds announces the following distributions for the month ending

November 30 2009 payable on December 14 2009 to unitholders of record as at November 30
2009

Convertible Yield Advantage Trust

High Yield Mortgage Plus Trust

Signature Diversified Value Trust

Skylon Global Capital Yield Trust

Skylon Global Capital Yield Trust II

Skylon Growth Income Trust

Skylon International Advantage Yield Trust

Series units

Series units

Yield Advantage Income Trust

For more information please contact CI Investments Inc

416 364-1145

1-800-268-9374

Skylon

Fund
TSX Distribution

Symbol Amount

CNV.UN
HYM.UN
SDF.UN

SLP.UN

SPO.UN
SKG.UN

SIA.UN

SIA.U

YOU.UN

Cdn$0.1458 per unit

Cdn$0.15625 per unit

Cdn$0.0666 per unit

Cdn$0.1510 per unit

Cdn$0.1510 per unit

Cdn$0.05833 per unit

Cdn$0.1042 per unit

US$0.0417 per unit

Cdn$0.0583 per unit
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Financial Highlights

change

in thousancisof dollars As at As at As at quarter-over- change

except per shae amounts Sept 30 2009 June 30 2009 Sept 30 2008 quarter year-over-year

Fee-earning assets 93765682 87352288 92829492

Retail assets under management 60612297 56.016.044 590391 05

Shares outstanding 292425 292396 27763

change

For the quarters ended quarter-over- change

Sept 30 2009 June 30 2009 Sept 30 2008 quarter year-over-year

Average retail assets

undermanagement

Gross sales of managed funds 1821412 2.323.822 2656844 22 31

Redemptions of managed funds .574.951 660 28
Net sales of managed funds 246461 66293 463062 63 47

income from 529l0 23.775 25 46
let income 17406 50.610 18131 66 85

Earnings per share from continuing operations 0.23 CLI 28 48

Earnings per share 0.l7 .42 65 86
EBITDA 141612 126092 159186 12 II

EBIID Apershar 0.48 0.43 97 12

Pre-ta operating earnings per shar 0.46 0.42 0.52 10

P.i.isnds per share 0.15 0.l5 9I

Average shares outstanding 292396 29247 27886

For the nine months ended For the nine months ended

Sept 30 2009 Sept 302008 %change

Average retail assets under management 53490.777 6508.440 ft
Gross saleso managed fns 6277262 9180454

tion of man fpos
..

Nt 561.e ofmanaged fund 1087826 84 .040

Net incom from continuing operaeons 18039 399286

J1252T 2176

per share continuing operatis 0.62 1.43 57

Earnings per share 0.43 1.40 69
EBITDA 393919 512473 23

59lJ per share .84 27
Pre-tax operating earnings per share1 .56

Dividends per share 94 70

Average shares outstandng 278970

EBITGA Eairsngs befso interest taxes depreciation and ornortizrrticnl and protax operating eainirrgs are riot standardized
eainirrgs

measures prescribed by GA/iF however management believes that most of its shareholders creditors other stakeholders and investment

analysts tsirftti no include the use of these perforrriance measures in analyzing Cls results IS net hod of calculating these rneasuii cray

not he comparable to simrlar rneosures presented by other companies EB17DA is measure of operating performance facilitator for

valuation ansi ci proxy for cash flow These flgurrs exclude discontinued operoticirrs

reconciliation of EBITD.A to net income from conrinuing operations is provided on page

reconciliation of tee-tax operatirrg earrsngs to rrcorrre befbre
ircoine taxes is piovided an page 10



Letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders

In the third quarter of 2009 financial markets continued to strengthen with the SP/TSX Composite Index returning

0.% and in Canadian dollar terms the SP .500 Index climbed 6.4% the Dow Jones Industrial Average rose 6.6% and

the MSCI World index gained 8.2%.These foreign returns were muted by the strength of the Canadian dollar which rose

8.7% over the quarter

Cl reported net sales of $246 million in the third quartel bringing the yeaito-date total to $1.1 billion Cls average retail

assets under management climbed 7.9% from the average level for the second quartet but are still 7.8% below the

average fbr the third quarter last year On the dealer side revenues are still being affected by lower sales of investment

products while service fee revenues have rebounded in line with the recovery in financial markets

Cls net income from continuing operations adjusted for equity-based compensation in the quarter ended September

30 2009 was $74 million or $0.25 per share up 21% from $61 million or $0.21 per share in the second quartet and

down 43% from $1 130 million or $0.47 per share adjusted for restructuring charges and writedown of marketable

securities in the quar ter ended September 302008.Adjusted EBITDA which provides pie-tax measure of underlying

profitability was $153 million or $0.52 per share up
2% from $137 million or $0.47 per share in the second quarter

and down 8% from $167 million or $0.60 per share adjusted for restructuring charges and writedown of maketable

securities in the third quarter last year

Our SGA expenses during the quarter were contained significantly below the growth in assets under management and

our operating profit margin increased
slightly even as trailer fees increased Management fee revenues as percentage of

average assets under management were steady as positive changes to our asset mix were offset by continued growth in

new institutional mandates that earn lower fees but contribute to the bottom line



Outlook

CI reported net sales in October of $19 million

The SP/TSX Composite Index is up 1% and the SP 500 Index is up almost 4% since September 30 Cfs assets under

management are currently up more than 6% from the average for the third quartec

The Board of Directors declared monthly cash dividends of $0.06 per share payable on December 2009 january IS

and February 12 2010 to shareholders of record on November 30 December 2009 and january 31 2010

respectively

WilliamT Holland Stephen MacPhail

Chief Executive Officer President





Managements Discussion and Analysis

This Managements Discussion and Analysis MDA dated November 2009 presents an analysis
of the financial

position of Cl Financial Corp and its subsidiaries CI as at September 30 2009 compared wFth December 2008

and the results of operations for the nine months and quarter ended September 30 2009 compared with the nine

months and quarter ended September- 30 2008 and the quarter ended June 30 2009

Unless the context otherwise requires all references to Cl are to Cl Financial Corp and as applicable its predecessors

Cl Financial Income Fund and Cl Financial Inc together with the entities and subsidiaries controlled by it and rts

predecessors

Financial information except where noted otherwise is presented in accordance with Canadian generally accepted

accounting principles GAAP and amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars.The pnncipal subsidiaries referenced

herein include Cl Investments Inc Cl Investments United Financial Corporation United Assante Wealth

Management Canada Ltd AWM and Blackmont Capital Inc Blackmont.The Asset Management segment of the

business includes the operating resufts and financial position of Cl Investments and United The Asset Administration

segment includes the operating results and financial position of AWM and its subsidiaries including Assante Capital

Management Ltd ACM and Assante Financial Management Ltd AFM.The operations of Blackmont are considered

discontinued as at September 302009 and are no longer included in the Asset Administration segment

This MDA contains forward-looking statements concerning anticipated future events results circumstances

performance or expectations with respect to Cl and its products and services including its business operations strategy

and financial perfbrmance and condition When used in this MDA such statements use such words as may will

expect believe and other similar terms.These statements are not historical facts but instead represent management

beliefs regarding future events many of which by their nature are inherently uncertain and beyond management control

Although management believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are based on

reasonable assumptions such statements involve risks and uncertainties Factors that could cause actual results to differ

materially fi-om expectations include among other things general economic and market conditions including interest and

foreign exchange rates global financial markets changes in government regulations or in tax laws industry competition

technological developments and other factor-s described under Risk Factors or discussed in other materials filed with

applicable securities regulatory authorities from time to time.The material factors and assumptions applied in reaching

the conclusions contained in these forward-looking statements include that the investment fund industry will remain

stable and that irrterest rates will remain relatively stable.The reader is cautioned against undue reliance on these forward-

looking statements For more complete discussion of the risk factors that may impact actual iesuhs please refer to the

Risk Factors section of this MDA and to the Risk Factors section of Cls Annual Information Form dated March 25

2009 which is available at warwsedarcom

This MDA includes several non-GAAP financial measures that do not have any standardized meaning prescribed by

GAP and may riot he comparable to similar measures presented by other companies However management believes

that most shar-eholders creditors other stakeholders and investment analysts prefer to include the use of these financial

measures in analyzing Cls resufts.These non-G4AP measures and reconciliations to GAAF where necessary are shown

as highlighted footnotes to the discussion throughout the document



SUMMARY CF QUARTERLY RESULTS

sit/hans of dollais except pci share amounts

2009 2008 2007

Q3 Q2 QI Q4 Q3 Q2 QI Q4 Q3

INCOME STATEMENT DATA

Management fees 273.5 251.0 229.1 243.3 302.7 316.9 301.0 322.2 326.3

Administration fees 28.3 27.4 26.6 27.8 30.6 34 379 36.5 32.0

Otherrevenues lo.9 3.5 18.6 7.9 16.5 17.1 20.5 21.6 12.8

Total revenues 18.7 291.9 274.3 289.0 3459 368 359.3 380.3 371.1

Selling general administrative 73.2 71.6 59.2 61.7 60.5 75.4 58.8 76.4 67.3

Trader fees 79.0 71.5 65.7 70.7 89 91.4 85.9 94.1 929

Investment dealer fees 21.8 20.6 20.1 22.3 24.0 26.9 29.4 28.2 26.7

Amorti2aton of deferred sales commissions 40.3 39.5 38.6 37.7 36.5 35.0 334 32.1 30.9

interest expense 7.8 6.4 6.5 1.1 10.7 12.9 11.7 1.3 10.6

Other expenses 59 4.3 6.8 1.9 22.3 e.5 7.6 2.5 5.2

Total expenses 228.0 23.9 l99 215.4 242 248.1 226.8 244.6 233.6

Income before income taes 90.7 78.0 77.4 73.6 107.7 120.0 132.5 135.7 137.5

income ta\es 24.3 25 16.3 21.6 16.1 15.3 7.8 41.0 3.3

Net scome loss from
contInuing operations 66.4 52.9 61.1 52.0 23.8 35.3 140.3 176.7 140.8

Net income loss from discontinued operations 490 2.3 2.3 1.2 5.7 0.6 1.1 1.0 2.9

Net income 74 50.6 58.8 53.2 118.1 134.7 139.2 87.7 143.7

Earnings per share horn continuing operations 0.23 0.18 0.2 0.19 0.44 P.48 0.50 0.62 049

Sainings per share 0.06 0.17 0.20 0.19 0.42 0.48 0.50 0.66 0.50

Dvidendspershare 0.15 0.15 0.16 0.17 0.5 0.50 0.5 0.57 0.56



Overview

CI is diversified wealth management firm and one of Canadas
largest independent investment fund companies Cl was

structured as an income trust from June 30 2006 to December 31 2008 In October 2008 Cl announced that it would

convert back to corporate structure and on Januaiy 2009 effected that conversion References to Cl should be

considered as continuation of the predecessor organization Cl Financial Income Fund All references to shares refer

collectively to common shares subsequent to December 31 2008 and to units prior to the conversion All references to

dividends refer
collectively to payments to shareholders subsequent to December 31 2008 and to payments to

unitholders prior to the conversion

The principal business of Cl is the management marketing distribution and administration of mutual funds segregated

funds structured products and other fee-earning investment products for Canadian investors They are distributed

primarily through brokers independent financial planners and insurance advisors including ACM and AFM financial

advisors Cl operates through two business segments Asset Management and Asset Administration The Asset

Management segment provides the majority of Cls income and derives its revenue principally from the fees earned on

the management of several families of mutual segregated pooled and closed-end funds structured products and

discretionary accounts The Asset Administration segment derives its revenues principally from commissions and fees

earned on the sale of mutual funds and other financial products and ongoing service to clients

While Cls average assets under management have declined 8% from the levels of one year earlier markets have

recovered
significantly

since bottoming in early ManTh and Cls average assets are up 8% from the second quarter Cls

revenues have similarly dropped from the levels of one year ago and increased from the levels of last quarterWhile some

expenses such as trailer fees and investment advisor fees are directly variable with the level of assets under management

most of Cls expenses are fixed in nature Cl has taken steps to cut its fixed expenses primarily through reduction of

its workforce which has mitigated some of the effect on net income

During this period of market uncertainty gross
sales of investment funds have declined Cls gross sales during the third

quarter were down 1% from those year ago However redemptions of Cls funds are also lower and Cl has posted

positive net sales Cl continues to post relatively strong net sales figures which is resuft of good fund performance in

combination with diverse product line-up that includes broad selection of innovative segregated funds

On October 26 2009 Cl announced that it had reached an agreement to sell the retail brokerage division of Blackmont

for $93.3 million Cl expects this transaction to close on December 31 2009 subject to regulatory approval As result

Blackmonts results from operations have been reported as discontinued operations and comparative statements and

related note disclosures have been reclassified All assets and liabilities of Blackmont have been classified on the balance

sheet as held-for-sale Information herein is presented excluding the discontinued operations of Blackmont unless

otherwise noted



Fee-Earning Assets and Sales

Total fee-earning assets which include Cl mutual and segregated funds United funds structured products institutional

managed assets AWM assets under administration Blackmont assets under administration and other fee-earning assets

were $93.8 billion at September 302009 an increase of 1% horn $92.8 billion at September 302008 As shown in the

following table these assets are represented by $60.2 billion in retail managed funds $0.4 billion in structured products

$4.2 billion in institutional managed assets $20.8 billion in AWM assets under administration $7.4 billion in Blackrnont

assets under administration and $0.8 billion in other fee-earning assets

FEEEARNlNG ASSETS

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30

if billions 2009 2008 change

Retail managed funds $60.2 $58.6

Structured
products

0.4 0.5 20

Total retail assets under management $60.6 $59.1

lnstitutional managed assets 4.2 3.9

Total assets under management $64.8 $63.0

AWM assets under administration 20.8 20.8

Blackmont assets under administration 7.4 7.8

Total assets under administration5 $28.2 $28.6

Cl other fee-earning assets 0.8 1.2 133

Total fee-earning assets $93.8 $92.8

oclides $1 ii billion and $9.8 hilNri in assets monngvd by Cl Investments and United in 2109 and 2008 respectively

Retail assets under management form the majori of Cls fee-earning assets and provide most of its revenue and net

income The change in retail assets under management during the 8rst nine months of each of the past two years is

detailed in the table below

in bItnn 2009

Retail assets under management at January
$50.8 $64.2

Gross sales

Redemptions

2008

6.3

5.2 7.3

Net sales 1.1 .8

Market performance 8.7 6.9

Retail asscts under management at September 30 $0.6 $59.1

9.1



The table below sets out the levels and change in Cls average retail assets under management and the gross and net

sales for the relevant periods As most of Cls evenue and expenses are based on assets throughout the yeas average

asset levels are critical to the
analysis

of Cls financial resufts.The change in Cls average retail assets year to date is the

resuft of positive
market performance and

positive net sales

Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended

September 30 2009 June 30 2009 September 30 2008in billions

Average retail AUM $57963 $53727 $62875

Change to September 30 2009 8% 8%

Gross sales $1.8 $2.3 $2.7

Net sales $0.2 $0.7 $0.5

Industry net redemptions of mutual funds reported by the Investment Funds Institute of Canada IFIC were $2.7 billion

for the three months ended September 302009 up $0.2 billion from net redemptions of $2.9 billion in the same period

last yeacTotal industry assets as reported by IFIC at September 302009 of $582.7 billion were up 0.7% from $578.4 billion

at September 302008 Sales and assets reported by IFIC are helpful as indicators of trends affecting significant portion

of Cls business It should be noted that IFIC figures do not include Cl as Cl does not report this information to IFIC

Results of Operations

Cl reported net income from continuing operations of $66.4 million $0.23 per share for the quarter ended September

302009 decrease from $123.8 million $0.44 per share reported for the quarter ended September 30 2008 and an

increase from the $52.9 million $0.18 per share reported for the quarter ended June 30 2009 Including discontinued

operations Cl reported net income of $17.4 million $0.06 per share for the quarter ended September 30 2009

decrease from $118.1 million $0.42 per share reported for the quarter ended September 30 2008 and an increase

Irom the $50.6 million $0.17 per share reported for the quarter ended June 30 2009 Included in the loss from

discontinued operations is loss of $47.3 million recorded as an impairment of goodwill

For the nine months ended September 302009 Cl reported net income from continuing operations of$ 180.4 million

$0.62 per share versus $399.3 million $1.43 per share for the nine months ended September 30 2008 Including

discontinued operations for the nine months ended September 30 2009 Cl reported net income of $126.8 million

$0.43 per share versus $392.2 million $1.40 per share for the nine months ended September 30 2008

The results of operations include amounts recorded for equity-based compensation expense which varies from period

to period based on Cls share pricethe extent of vesting during the period and the price at which options were exertised

during the period Earnings for the quarter ended September 30 2009 were decreased by an equity-based compensation

expense of $11.6 million $7.8 million after tax versus recovery of $7.6 million $5.1 million after tax for the quarter

ended September 302008 and an expense of$ 11.2 million $7.6 million after tax for the quarter ended June 30 2009
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In the third quarter of 2008 Cl recorded charge of$ 10.0 million $6.7 million after-tax for restructuring costs relating

to severance and exit costs in order to downsize as resuft of market conditions Cl also wrote down the value of

marketable securities by $5 million $4.2 million after-tax

In the quarter ended September 30 2009 income tax expenses were $24.4 million which compares to $25.1 million in

the second quarter of 2009 and recovery of $16.1 million in the third quarter of 2008

Cls pre-tax operating earnings as set out in the following table adjust for the impact of equity-based compensation and

gains on marketable securities Redemption fee revenue and the amortization of deferred sales commissions and fund

contracts are netted out to remove the impact of back-end nanced assets under management

Redemption fee revenue dropped to $6.8 million in the third quarter of 2009 fiom $7.4 million in the second quarter

of 2009 and $8.3 million in the third quarter of 2008 This decrease can be attributed to lower back-end asset

redemption levels and lower average redemption fee rates

Amortization of deferred sales commissions and fund contracts increased to $4 .4 million in the quarter ended

September 30 2009 from $40.7 million in the quarter ended june 30 2009 and $37.6 million in the third quarter of

2008.The increase is result of higher spending on deferred sales commissions which has grown from $80 million per

year in 2003 to $156 million over the past 12 months

Pre-tax operating earnings per share were up 0% for the quarter ended September 30 2009 compared with the

quarter ended June 30 2009 as average retail assets under management increased 8% Pm-tax operating earnings per

share were down 2% from the quarter ended September 30 2008 as average retail assets under management

deci-eased 8c

Pre-Tax Operating Earnings

CI uses pre-tax operating earnings
to assess its underlying profitability Cl defines pre-tax operating earnings as income beibre income taxes less

redemption fee revenue performance fees and investment
gains plus amortization of deferred ales commissions DSC and find contracts

equity-based compensation expense as well as restructunng costs and an adjustment to marketable securities in the third quarter of last year

Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended Nine months ended Nine months ended

in millions except pet
share amounts Sept 30 2009 June 30 2009 Sept 302008 Sept 30 2009 Sept 30 2008

Income before income taxes $90.7 $78.0 $107.7 $246.2 $360.2

Less

Redemption fees 68 74 8.3 23.0 266

Performance fees 0.1 0.1 0.8

Gain Ooss on marketable securities 3.2 03 2.9

Ad
Amo-tization of DSC and fund cortracts 41.4 40.7 37.6 121.9 108.3

Equy-based compensation epense 11.6 11.2 7.6 23.6 19.7

Restructuring costs and adjustment

to marketable securities 15.0 leO

Pre-tax operating earnings $133.7 $122.7 $144.4 $365.7 $436.4

per share $0.46 $0.42 $0.52 $1.25 $1.56
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As shown in the table below EBITDA for the quarter ended September 30 2009 was $141.6 million $0.48 per share

compared with $126.1 million $0.43 per share for the quarter ended June 30 2009 and $159.2 million $0.57 per

share for the quarter ended September 30 2008 Adjusted for the equfty-based compensation expense discussed

earlie EBITDA was $153.2 million $0.52 per share for the quarter ended September 30 2009 up 12% from $137.3

million $0.47 per share in the previous qua rten

Interest expense of $7.8 million was recorded for the quarter ended September 30 2009 compared with $6.4 million

for the quarter ended June 302009 For the nine months ended September 302009 interest expense was $20.7 million

versus $35.4 million for the nine months ended September 30 2008.This decrease in interest expense reflects lower

average debt levels and lower interest rates as discussed underLiquidity and Capital Resources Debt is generally used

to fund growth in the company and to repurchase share capital EBITDA provides information on the results of

operations prior to the impart on interest expense of such capital structure decisions and financing activities

EBITDA

CI uec EBITDA earriags before interest taxes depreciation and amortization to assess its underlying profitability prior to the impact of its

financing Sti ucture income taxes and the amortization of deferred sales commissions fund contracts and capital assets This also permits

comparisons industr before any distortion caused by different financing methods levels of taation and mix of

business bet .end sales commission assets under management EBITDA is measure of opereting performance

facilitator an cash flow

Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended Nine months cnded Nine months ended

in millions except per shcte uinourxsl Sept 302009 June 30 2009 Sept 302008 Sept 302009 Sept 302008

Net income from continuing operations $66.4 $53.0 $123.8 $180.4 $3993

Add deduct

Interest expense 7.8 6.4 10.7 20.7 35.4

Income tax expense recovery 24.4 25.1 16.1 65.7 39.1

As-n rscr -c 41 40.7 108.3

______
52 8.6

El $512.5

_______
$1.84

Ebi margin as of revenue 43 o.s 4it 48
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Asset Management Segment

The Asset Management segment is Cls principal business segment and includes the operating results and financial

position of Cl Investments and United

Results of Operations

The following table presents the operating results for the Asset Management segment

Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended Nine months ended Nine months ended

Sept 302009 June 30 2009 Sept 302008 Sept 30 2009 Sent 30.2008in milonsl

Management fees $273.5 $251.0 $302.7 $753.6 $920.6

Other revenue 10.6 72 10.4 29.1 34.2

Total revenue $284.1 $258.2 $313.1 $782.7 $954.8

Selling general and administrative 61.1 59 46.2 65.8 50.0

TraIer fees 82.2 74.5 91.5 225.4 276.8

Amortizaton of deferred sales

commissions fund contracts 41.9 41.2 38.0 123.3 109.2

Other expenses 3.7 1.9 5.8 .0 16.5

Total expenses $188.9 $176.7 $181.5 $525.5 $552.5

lncome before taxes and non-segmented items $95.2 $81.5 $131.6 $257.2 $402.3

Revenues

Revenues from management fees were $73.5 million for the quarter ended September 30 2009 an increase of $22.5

million or 9% fiom the quarter ended June 30 2009 and decrease of $29.2 million or 10% from the quarter ended

September 30 2008.The changes were mainly attributable to changes in average retail assets under management which

were up 8% and down 8% horn the quarters ended June 30 2009 and September 30 2008 respectivelyThe changes

in assets reflect the significant volatility of global equity markets As percentage of average retail assets under

management management fees were 1.872% for the quarter ended September 30 2009 comparable to 1.874% in the

second quarter ended June 30 2009 and down from 1.9 15% in the third quarter of last yeai

Average management fee rates decreased from the prior year as result of bond and money market funds for which

Cl receives lower management fee forming greater proportion of assets relative to equity funds This change in

asset mix is result of the greater market depreciation in equity funds and shift in investor preference to lower-risk

investment products The decline in management fees from the prior year was also due to Cls initiative to cut the

management fees on money market funds as result of the decrease in interest rates.As well there is continuing trend

towards higher proportion of Cls assets being Class and Class funds which have lower management fees Class

funds pay no trailer fees to advisors who typically charge their clients flat or asset-based fee Class funds which are

for institutional clients with large holdings have reduced management fees At September 302009 there were $785.8

million and $8.5 billion in Class and Class funds respectively making up combined 15.3% of retail assets under

management At September 30 2008 the combined Class and Class funds were 13.5% of retail assets under

management with $754.3 million in Class funds and $7.2 billion in Class funds
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For the quarter ended September 30 2009 other revenue was $10.6 million increasing from 0.4 million and $7.2

million for the quarters ended September 30 2008 and June 30 2009 respectively The
largest component of other

revenue is redemption fees As discussed earlier redemption fees were $6.8 million for the quarter ended September

30 2009 compared with $8.3 million and $7.4 million for the quarters ended September 30 2008 and June 30 2009

respectively Also included in other revenue is $3.2 million in gain on sale of marketable secunties for the quarter ended

September 30 2009 This compares with loss of $0.3 million and nil for the quarters ended June 30 2009 and

September 30 2008 respectively

Expenses

Selling general and administrative SGA expenses for the Asset Management segment were $61.1 million for the

quarter ended September 30 2009 an increase from $39.1 million for the quarter ended June 302009 and an increase

from $46.2 million for the third quarter of 2008 Included in SGA are expenses relating to Cls equity-based

compensation plan.The equity-based compensation expense within the Asset Management segment was $11.6 million

for the quarter ended September 30 2009 compared with an expense of $11.2 million for the quarter ended June 30

2009.The quarter ended September 30 2008 had an equity-based compensaton recovery of $8.1 million

Based on the price per Cl share of $14.50 at December 31 2008 the potential payment on all vested equity-based

compensation outstanding plus the proportion of unvested amounts was $0.1 million Based on the price per Cl share

of $20.59 at September 30 2009 and the options that vested during the nine-month period the equity-based

compensation liability
increased to $22.6 million.Although Cl acknowledges that the equity-based compensation expense

is
clearly cost of business that is tied to the performance of Cls share pdce the financial results presented hereinafter

both include and exclude the expense to aid the reader in conducting comparative analysis

SGA expenses net of the amount related to equity-based compensation net SGA were $49.5 million for the

quarter ended September 30 2009 up slightly from $47.9 million for the quarter ended June 30 2009 and down 9%

from $54.3 million for the quarter ended September 30 2008 The decrease from the prior year is resuft of

managements actions to control expenses during the recent market downturn

As percentage of average retail assets under management net SGA expenses were 0.339% for the quarter ended

September 30 2009 down from 0.357% for the quarter ended June 30 2009 and 0.344% for the quarter ended

September 30 2008

Tiailer fees were $82.2 million for the quarter ended September 30 2009 compared with $9 1.5 million for the quarter

ended September 30 2008 and $74.5 million for the quarter ended June 30 2009 Net of intersegment amounts this

expense was $79.0 million for the quarter ended September 30 2009 versus $88.1 million for the third quarter of 2008

and $71.5 million forthe second quarter of 2009.As percentage of average retail assets under management trailer fees

were 0.541% in the third quarter of 2009 up from 0.534% in the prior quarter and down from 0.557% in the

comparable quarter of 2008
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For the quarter ended September 30 2009 Cls operating profit margin on the Asset Management segment as

percentage of average retail assets under management adjusted for equity-based compensation expense was 0.992%

down from 1.0 4% for the third quarter last year and up from 0.983% in the second quarter this yeacThe decline from

the prior year was primarily resuft of lower management fee rates.The improvement from the prior quarter was due

to lower net SGA expenses

Generally Cls margins have been in gradual downward trend Increasing competition and changes in the product

platforms through which an increasing amount of funds are sold have pushed average management fee rates lowe In

recent years an increasing proportion of funds have been sold with front-end sales charge which have higher trailer

fees and contribute to decline in margins However this quarter relative to last yeas the decline in management fee and

trailer fee rates was primarily result of an increase in the percentage of assets in money market funds and Class funds

relative to Cls total assets under management as well as Cls decision to cut the management fees on money market

funds Historically Cl has been able to limit growth in SGA expenses below the growth in assets under management in

order to mitigate the decline in its margins Howevei when assets decline rapidly it is very difficult to reduce SGA

expenses at the same pace

Commissions paid from Cls cash resources on the sale of funds sold on deferred sales charge basis are for financial

reporting purposes amortized evenly over 36 months low load or 84 months full load immediately following the sale

of the funds The actual cash payment in any period is reported in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows under

Investing Activities Amortization of deferred sales commissions was $4 .2 million for the quarter ended September 30

2009 up from $37.2 million in the same quarter last year and $40.4 million in the previous quartet The increase is

consistent with the increase in deferred sales commissions paid in the past several years

Other expenses were $3.7 million for the quarter ended September 30 2009 compared to $1.9 million in the last

quarter and $5.8 million in the quarter ended September 30 2008 Included in other expenses are distribution fees to

limited partnerships and capital taxes

Operathig Profit Margin

Cl monitors Its operating profitability on retail assets under management within its Asset Management segment by measuring the operating

profit margin which is defined as management fees from funds less trailer fees arid SGA epenes net of
equity-based compensation

epense recovery calculated as percentage of
average

retail assets under management

Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended Nine months ended Nine months ended

as aX of aveloge retailAUM Sept 302009 lune 30 2009 Sept 302008 Sept 302009 Sept 302008

Mariagemcntfces 1.872 .874 1.915 1.884 1936

Less

flajlrfcc 0.541 u.534 0.557 0.540 0558

Net SGA e\penses 0.339 0.357 0.344 0.356 0.359

Operating profit margin 0.92 0.983 1.014 988 1.019
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Income before income taxes and interest expense for Cls
principal segment was $95.2 million for the quarter ended

September 302009 compared with $131.6 million in the same period last year and $81.5 million in the previous quarter

The decline fi-om the comparable quarter last year is primarily due to lower revenues as result of the decline in average

retail assets under management

Asset Administration Segment

The Asset Administration segment includes the operating results and financial position of AWM and its subsidianes.The

operations of Blackmont are considered discontinued as at September 30 2009 and are no longer included in the Asset

Administration segment Comparative prior quarter and prior year results have been adjusted to eliminate the

discontinued operations of Blackmont

Results of Operations

The table that follows presents the operating results for the Asset Administration segment

Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended Nine months ended Nine months ended

in rniiliuns Sept 302009 june 30 2009 Sept 30 2008 Sept 302009 Sept 302008

Administration fees $48.1 $46.9 $54.7 $142.4 $178.3

Other revenue 6.3 6.1 6.1 19.9 19.8

Total revenue $54.4 $53.0 $60.8 $162.3 $198.1

Sellins general and administrative 12 143 38.2

Investment dealer lees 37.6 36.2 43.9 110.6 142.9

Amortization of fund contracts 0.4 0.4 04 1.1 1.1

Other
per.ses

1.1 1.1 0.3 2.6 1.3

Total e\penses $51.2 $50.3 $58.9 $152.5 $190.1

Income before tazes and non-segmented items $3.2 $2.7 $1.9 $9.8 $8.0

The Asset Administration segment had income befote income taxes and non-segmented items of $3.2 million for the

quarter ended September 30 2009 increasing from $1.9 million for the quarter ended September 30 2008 and $2.7

million for the quarter ended June 30 2009.The increase from the prior year is due to higher dealer gross margins and

reduced
selling general and administrative expenses

Revenues

Adminis-ti-atjon fees are earned on assets under administration in theAWM business and from the administration of third-

party business.These fees were $48.1 million for the quarter ended September 30 2009 decrease of 12% fiom $54.7

million for the same period last year and an increase of 3% from the prior quarter Net of intersegment amounts

administration fee revenue was $28.3 million for the quarter ended September 30 2009 down from $30.6 million for

the quarter ended September 30 2008 and up from $27.4 million in the previous quarterThe decrease from the prior

year was mainly attributable to the decline in assets under administration.This decrease in assets is due to the
significant

declines in equity markets around the world Administration fees should be considered in conjunction with investment

dealer fees an expense that represents the payout to financial advisors
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Other revenues earned by the Asset Administration segment are mainly comprised of interest income on cash balances

fees related to registered accounts and foreign exchange gains and losses For the quarter ended September 30 2009

other revenues were $6.3 million increasing from $6.1 million for the third quarter last year and $6 million in the second

quarter of 2009

Expenses

Investment dealer fees are the direct costs attributable to the operation of the AWM dealership including payments to

financial advisors based on the revenues generated from assets under administration.These fees were $37.6 million for

the quarter ended September 30 2009 compared to $36.2 million for the second quarter ended June 30 2009 and

$43.9 million for the same pedod last yeac

As detailed in the table below dealer gross margin was $10.5 million or 21.8% of administration fee revenue for the

quarter ended September 30 2009 compared to $10.7 million or 22.8% for the previous quarter and $10.8 million or

19.7% for the same quarter last yeacThe increase in
yean.ovei7ear gross margin is resuft of decrease in advisor grid

payouts as lower rates are paid on lower revenue levels

Selling general and administrative SGA expenses for the segment were $12.1 million for the quarter ended

September 30 2009 lower than the $12.6 million expense in the second quarter of 2009 and down from $14.3 million

in the same period last yeacThe year-over-year decrease is primarily result of managements actions to control expenses

during market volatility

Dealer Groas Margjn

Cl monitors ts operaang profitabibty on the revenues earned within its Asset Administration segment by measuring the dealer gross margin

which is calculated as administration fee revenue less investment dealer fees divided by administration fee revenue Cl uses this measure to

assess the margin remaining
after the payout to advisors

Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended Nine months ended Nine months ended

in millions Sept 30.2009 june 30 2009 Sept 302008 Sept 30 2009 Sept 302008

Administration fees $48 $46.9 $54.7 $42.4 $178.3

Less

Investment dealer fees 37.6 36.2 43.9 10.6 42.9

$10.5 $l07 $10.8 $31.8 $35.4

Dealer
gross margin 21.8% 2.8% 19.7% 22.3% 19.9%
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The balance sheet for CI at September 302009 reflects total assets of $3.572 billion decrease of $41.7 million from

$3.6 billion at December 31 2008.This change can be attributed to an increase in current assets of $57.9 million and

decrease in long-term assets of $99.6 million Cls cash and cash equivalents balance decreased by $9.6 million in the

nine months ended September 30 2009

Cl generates significant cash flow from ts operations Cash flow provided by continuing operating activities was $435.7

million for the nine months ended September 30 2009 Excluding the change in worldng capital cash flow from

continuing operations was $396.9 million During the nine-month period Cl paid $119.8 million in dividends

As Cl converted back to corporate structure on January 2009 there is no longer requirement to pay out

substantially all of its cash flow At current levels of cash flow and anticipated dividend payout rates Cl would produce

considerable excess cash in order to meet its obligations and pay down debt

Cl disposed of marketable securities during the third quarter of 2009 resulting
in gain of $3.2 million.The fair value of

marketable securities at September 30 2009 was $6.4 million Marketable securities are comprised of seed capital

investments in its funds and other
strategic

investments

Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses decreased to 109.4 million at September 30 2009 from $127.4 million at

December 312008 Cl received net payments of $32.6 million during the nine months ended September 302009 from

demand loan with one of its managed funds This is discussed in further details in related party transactions

Furthermore receivables decreased due to lower revenues earned during the nine months compared to the prior nine

months During the period ending September 30 2009 future income tax assets increased by $6.8 million as result of

the $22.5 million increase in the equity-based compensation liability

During the nine-month period ended September 30 2009 long-term assets decreased primarily as resuft of $63.5

million decrease in assets held for sale due to the sale of Blackniont In addition other assets decreased by $25.6 million

The decrease in other assets mainly relates to the receipt of $10.0 million of long-term receivable and reclassification

of $6.5 million from long-term receivable to current receivable

Liabilities decreased by $6.2 million during the nine months ended September 30 2009.The main contributor to this

change was the repayment of $218.4 million in long-term debt offset by an increase in accounts payable dividends

payable liabilities held for sale equity-based compensation and future income taxes Current income taxes payable

decreased by $7.4 million Future income taxes payable increased by $56.1 million mainly due to the utilization of $240.0

million in tax losses In addition the equity-based compensation liability increased by $22.5 million as there were more

options vested and Cls share price increased over the period



Cl paid down $218.4 million of its credit facility during the nine months ended September 30 2009 decreasing tong-

term debt At September 30 2009 Cl had drawn $781.0 million at an average rate of 2.76% compared with $999.4

million drawn at an average rate of 3.17% at December 2008 Net of cash and marketable securities debt was $749.0

million at September 30 2009 versus $953.5 million at December 31 2008

Principal repayments on Cls cr-edit facility are only required under the
facility

should the banks decide not to renew the

facifity on its anniversary in which case 50% of the principal would be repaid in eight equal calendar quarterly instalments

with the balance payable two years following the first quarterly instalmentThese payments would be payable beginning

June 302010 should the banks not renew the facilityThe limit on the facility as September 302009 was $900 million

which was i-educed from $975 million on September 10 2009

Cls current ratio of debt to EBITDA adjusted for equity-based compensation is 1.31 Cl is comfortable with this ratio

and has long-term target of 11 Cl expects that absent acquisitions in which debt is increased the amount of debt

incurred to finance growth will fall below the amount of increase in EBITDA and the ratio of debt to EBITDA will trend

lower Cls current debt service ratio is 19.6

Cl is within its financial covenants with respect to its credit facikty
which requires that the debt service ratio remain above

1.5 the debt to EBITDA ratio remain below 2.5 and assets under management not fall below $35 billion for period

of seven consecotive business days

Cls main uses of
capital

are the financing of deferred sales commissions the payment of dividends on its shares the

funding of
capital expenditures and the repurchase of shares through its normal course issuer bid program

Cl paid sales commissions of $114.0 million in the nine months ended September 30 2009 This compares to $151.2

million in the nine months ended September 30 2008The amount of deferred sales commissions incurred in the nine-

month period ended September 302009 i-elates to back-end load fund sales of approximately $257 million per month

During the nine months ended September 30 2009 Cl incurred capital expenditures of $2.6 million primarily for

computer hardware and sofiware.While Cl has recentiy delayed certain capital expenditures key initiatives are continuing

and
capital expenditures in 2009 should approximate the levels of prior years

Shareholders equity decreased by $35.6 million in the nine months ended September 30 2009 During the nine-month

period Cl repurchased shares under its normal course issuer bid at cost of $16.0 million of which $13.7 related to Cls

share buy-back plan and $2.3 million related to the purchase of shares for Cls compensation plan Cl declared dividends

of $149.2 million $119.8 million paid which was less than net income from continuing operations for the nine months

ended September 302009 by $3 1.2 million Cl expects that future dividend payments will be $0.06 per share per month

or appi-oximately $211 million per year
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Risk Management

The disclosures below provide an analysis of the rsk factors affecting
Cls business operations

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of financial loss
resulting

from adverse changes in underlying market factors such as interest rates

foreign exchange rates equity and commodity prices.A description of each component of maj-ket risk is described below

Interest rate risk is the risk of gain or loss due to the
volatility

of interest rates

Foreign exchange rate risk is the risk of gain or loss due to volatility of foreign exchange rates

Equity risk is the risk of gain or loss due to the changes in the prices and the volatility of individual equity instruments

and equity indexes

Cls financial performance is indirectly exposed to market riskAny decline in financial markets or lack of sustained growth

in such markets may resuft in corresponding decline in performance and may adversely affect Cls assets under

management management fees and revenues which would reduce cash flow to Cl and ultimately Cls dividends

Asset Management Segment

Cl is subject to market risk throughor.it its Asset Management business segmentThe following is description of how Cl

mitigates the impact this risk has on its financial position and operating eamings

Management of the Asset Management segments market risk is the responsibility of the Chief Compliance Officer who

reports to Cls senior managementThe Compliance group has established control environment that ensures risks are

reviewed regularly and that risk controls throughout Cl are operating in accordance with regulatory requirements.The

Compliance group carefully reviews the exposure to interest rate risk foreign currency risk and equity risk by monitoring

and
identifying any potential market risks to Cls senior management When particular market risk is identified portfolio

managers of the funds are directed to mitigate the risk by reducing their exposure

At September 302009 approximately 19% of Cls assets under management were held in fixed-income securities which

are exposed to interest rate risk An increase in interest rates causes market prices of fixed-income securities to fall while

decrease in interest rates causes market prices to rise Cl estimates that 25 basis point change in interest rates would

cause change $0.3 million in annual pre-tax earnings in the Asset Management segment

At September 30 2009 close to 72% of Cls assets under management were based in Canadian currency which

diminishes the exposure to foreign exchange risk However approximately 12% of Cls assets under management were

based in U.S currency at September 30 2009 Any change in the value of the Canadian dollar relative to U.S currency

will cause fluctuations in Cls assets under management upon which Cls management fees are calculated Cl estimates

that 0% change in Canadian/U.S exchange rates would cause change of $8.3 million in the Asset Management

segments annual pie-tax earnings
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About 69% of Cls assets under management were held in equity securities at September 302009 which are subject to

equity risk Equity nsk is classified into two categories general equity risk and
issuer-specific

rsk Cl employs internal and

external fund managers to take advantage of these individuals expertise in particular market niches sectors and products

and to educe issueispecilic risk through diversification Cl estimates that 10% change in the prices of equity indexes

would cause change of $48.8 million in annual pre-tax earnings

Asset Administration Segment

Cls Asset Administration business is exposed to market riskThe follo1ng is description of how Cl mitigates the impact

this risk has on its financial position and resufts of operations

Risk management for the Asset Administration segment is the responsibility of the Chief Compliance Officer and senior

management Responsibilities include ensuring policies processes and internal controls are in place and in accordance

with regulatory requirements Cls internal audit department reviews Cls adherence to these policies and procedures

Cls operating results are not materially exposed to market risk impacting the asset administration segment given that

this segment usually generates about 5% of the total income before non-segmented items this segment had income of

$3.2 million before income taxes and non-segmented items for the quarter ended September 30 2009 Investment

advisors
regularly

review their client portfolios to assess market risk and consuft with clients to make appropriate changes

to mitigate it The effect of 10% change in any component of market risk comprised of interest rate risk foreign

exchange risk and equity risk would have resulted in change of less than $1 million to the Asset Administration

segments pre-tax earnings

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with the
inability

of third party to fulfill its payment obligations Cl is exposed

to the risk that third parties that owe it money securities or other assets will not perform their obligations.These parties

include trading counterparties customers clearing agents exchanges clearing houses and other financial interrnediaries

as well as issuers whose securities are held by Cl.These parties may default on their obligations due to banuptcy lack

of liquidity operational failure or other reasons Cl does not have significant exposure to any individual counterparty

Credit risk is mitigated by regularly monitoring the credit performance of each individual counterparty and holding

collateral where appropriate

One of the primary sources of credit risk to Cl arises when Cl extends credit to clients to purchase secunties by way of

margin lending Margin loans are due on demand and are collateralized by the financial instruments in the clients account

Cl faces risk of financial loss in the event client fails to meet margin call if market prices for securities held as collateral

decline and if Cl is unable to recover sufficient value from the collateral held.The credit extended is limited by regulatory

requirements and by Cls internal credit policy Credit risk is managed by dealing with counterparties Cl believes to be

creditworthy and by actively monitoring credit and margin exposure and the financial health of the counterparties Cl has

concluded that current economic and credit conditions have not significantly impacted its financial assets
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Changes in Economic Political and Market Conditions

Cls performance is directly affected by financial market and
political conditions including the

legislation
and

policies
of

governments.The financial markets and businesses operating in the securities industry are volatile and are directly
affected

by among other factors domestic and foreign economic conditions and general trends in business and finance all of which

are beyond the control of Cl There can be no assurance that financial market performance will be favourable in the

futuie.Any decline in financial markets or lack of sustained growth in such markets may resuft in corresponding decline

in performance and may adversely affect Cls assets under management fees and/or revenues which would reduce cash

flow to Cl

Investment Performance of the Funds

If the funds managed by Cl are unable to achieve investment returns that are competitive with or superior to those

achieved by other comparable investment products offered by Cls competitors such funds may not attract assets

through gross sales or may experience redemptions which may have negative impact on Cls assets under management

This would have negative impact on Cls revenue and profitability

Competition

CI operates in
highly competitive environment with competition based on variety of factors including the range of

products offered brand recognition investment performance business reputation financing strength the strength and

continuity of institutional management and sales relationships quality of service level of fees charged and level of

commissions and other compensation paid Cl competes with large number of mutual fund companies and other

providers of investment products investment management firms broker-dealers banks insurance companies and other

financial institutions Some of these competitors have greater capital and other resources and offer more comprehensive

lines of products and services than Cl The trend toward greater consolidation within the investment management

industry has increased the strength of number of Cls competitors Additionally there are few barriers to entry by new

investment management flims and the successful efforts of new entrants has resulted in increased competition Cls

competitors seek to expand market share by offering different products and services than those offered by CIThere can

be no assurance that CI will maintain its current standing or market share and that may adversely affect the business

financial condition or operating results of Cl

Management Foes and Other Costs

Cls
ability to maintain its management fee structure will be dependent on its

ability to provide investors with products

and services that are competitive.There can be no assurance that Cl will not come under competitive pressure to lower

the fees charged or that it will be able to retain the current fee structure or with such fee structure retain its investors

in the future Changes to management fees commission rates structures or service fees related to the sale of mutual

funds and closed-end funds could have an adverse effect on Cls operating results By reason of Cls implementation in

2005 of fixed administration fees for its mutual funds significant decrease in the value of the relevant funds in

combination with the fixed administration fees could reduce margins and have an adverse effect on Cls operating results
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Risks of Significant Redemptions of Cls Assets Under Management

Cl earns revenue prmanty from management fees earned for advising and managing pools of assets.These revenues

depend largy on the value and composition of mutual fund assets under management The level of assets under

management is influenced by three factors sales ii redemption rates and iii investment performance Sales and

redemptions may fluctuate depending on market and economic conditions investment performance and other factors

Recent market volatility has contributed to redemptions and diminished sales kr participants in the Canadian wealth

management industry

Administration Vulnerability and Error

The administrative services provided by Cl depend on software supplied by third-party suppliers Failure of key supplier

the loss of these suppliers products or problems or errors related to such products would have material adverse effect

on the ability
of the CI to provide these administrative services Changes to the pricing arrangement with such third-

party suppliers because of upgrades or other circumstances could have an adverse effect upon the profitability of the Cl

There can be no assurances that the Cls systems will operate or that the CI will be able to prevent an extended systems

failure in the event of subsystem component or software failure or in the event of an earthquake fire or any other

natural disaster or power or telecommunications failure.Any systems failure that causes interruptions in the operations

of the Cl could have material adverse effect on its business financial condition and operating results Cl may also

experience losses in connection with employee errors Although expenses incurred by Cl in connection with employee

errors have not been
significant

in the past there can be no assurances that these expenses will not increase in the future

Sufficiency of Insurance

Members of Cl maintain various types of insurance which may include financial institution bonds errors and omissions

insurance directors trustees and officers
liability insurance agents insurance and general commercial liability insurance

There can be no assurance that claim or claims will not exceed the limits of available insurance coverage that any

insurer will remain solvent or willing to continue providing insurance coverage with sufficient limits or at reasonable

cost or that any insurer will not dispute coverage of certain claims due to ambiguities in the relevant policies.A judgment

against any member of Cl in excess of available coverage could have material adverse effect on Cl both in terms of

damages awarded and the impact on the reputation of Cl

Regulation of CI

Certain subsidianes of Cl are heavily regulated in all jurisdictions where they cany on business Laws and regulations

applied at the national and provincial
level generally grant governmental agencies and self-regulatory bodies broad

administrative discretion over the activities of Cl including the power to limit or restrict business activities Possible

sanctions include the revocation or imposition of conditions on licenses to operate certain businesses the suspension or

expulsion from particular market or jurisdiction
of any of Cls business segments or its key personnel or financial

advisors and the imposition of fines and censures It is also possible that the laws and regulations governing subsidiarys

operations or particular investment products or services could be amended or interpreted in manner that is adverse

to Cl.To the extent that existing or future regulations affecting
the sale or offering of Cls pi-oduct or set-vices or Cls

investment strategies cause or contdbute to i-educed sales of Cls products or lower margins or impair the investment

perfbrmance of Cls products Cls aggregate assets under management and its revenues may be adversely affected
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General Business Risk and Liability

Given the nature of Cls business Cl may from time to time be subject to claims or complaints from investors or others

in the normal course of business.The legal rsks facing Cl its directors officers employees or agents in this respect include

potential liability for violations of securities laws breach of fiduciary duty and misuse of investors funds Some violations

of securities laws and breach of fiduciary duty could result in civil liability fines sanctions or expulsion from self

regulatory organization or the suspension or revocation of Cls subsidiaries right to carry on their existing business Cl

may incur
significant costs in connection with such potential liabilities

Leverage and Restrictive Covenants

The
ability

of Cl to pay dividends or male other payments is subject to applicable laws and contractual restrictions

contained in the instruments governing any indebtedness of Cl and its subsidiaries including Cls credit
facility

The

degree to which Cl is leveraged could have important consequences to shareholders including Cls
ability to obtain

additional financing for working capital capital expenditures or acquisitions in the future may be limited Cl may be unable

to refinance indebtedness on terms acceptable to it or at all and
significant portion of Cls cash 110w from operations

may be dedicated to the payment of the
principal

and interest on its indebtedness thereby reducing the funds available

for future operations.The credit
facility

contains number of financial covenants that require Cl to meet certain financial

ratios and financial condition tests.A failure to comply with the obligations in Cls credit
facility

could result in default

which if not cured or waived could result in termination of dividends by Cl and permit acceleration of the relevant

indebtedness If the indebtedness under Cls cut-rent credit facility were to be accelerated there can be no assurance that

Cls assets would be sufficient to repay in full that indebtedness In addition Cls current credit facility matures no later

than the fourth anniversary thereof unless the bank elects to extend the term at its annual renewal.There can be no

assurance that future borrowings or equity financing will be available to Cl or available on acceptable terms in an amount

sufficient to fund Cls needs

Fluctuation of Cash Dividends

Although Cl intends to distribute some portion of the income it earns there can be no assurance regarding the amount

of cash dividends distributed upstream from its subsidiaries.The actual amount of dividends paid depends upon numerous

factors all of which are susceptible to number of risks and other factors beyond the control of Cl Dividends are not

guaranteed and will fluctuate with the performance of the business

Share Price Risk

Share price risk arises from the potential adverse impact on Cls earnings due to movements in Cls share price Cls

equity-based compensation liability is directly affected by fluctuations in Cls share price Cls senior management actively

manages equity risk by employing number of techniques.This includes closely monitoring fluctuations in Cls share
p1-ice

and purchasing Cl shares at optimal times on the open market for the trust created
solely

for the purposes of holding

Cl shares for Cls equity-based compensation As well Cl has in the past entered into total return swap transactions to

mitigate its exposure to the price of Cl shares and the
resulting fluctuations in its equity based compensation.The effect

of $1.00 change in Cls share price at September 30 2009 would have resulted in change of approximately $3.5

million in equity-based compensation
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Related Party Transactions

Cl entered into transactions related to the advisory and distribution of its mutual funds with Bank of Nova Scotia

Scotiabank These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were recorded at the agreed upon

exchange amounts During the quarter ended September 30 2009 Cl incurred charges for deferred sales commissions

of $0.5 million and trailer fees of $1.5 million which were paid or payable to Scotiabank The balance payable to

Scotiabank as at September 30 2009 of $0.5 million is included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Scotiabank is the administrative agent for Cls revolving credit
facility

As at September 30 2009 Cl had drawn $781.0

million against this facility versus $999.4 million at December 31 2008 in the form of bankers acceptances $781.0

million compared to $990.0 million at December 312008 and prime rate loan $nil versus $9.4 million at December

2008 Dudng the three months ended September 30 2009 interest standby and stamping fees of $7.7 million was

recorded as interest expense

During 2008 Cl provided demand loan to one of its managed funds pursuant to promissory note agreementThe

loan
facility

is for maximum of $50 million and interest is calculated at market rates As at September 30 2009 $nil

compared to $32.6 million at December 2008 was outstanding including accrued interest and was included in

accounts receivable and prepaid expenses During the three months ended September 30 2009 interest of $0.1 million

was recorded and included in other income

Share Capital

As at September 30 2009 Cl had 292425404 shares outstanding

At September 30 2009 6.9 million options to purchase shares were outstanding of which 1.2 million options were

exercisable

Contractual Obligations

The table that follows summarizes Cls contractual obligations at September 30 2009

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

Less than or more

yearsnotions Total
year

Long-term debt $781.0 $97.6 $155.3 $488.1

Operating leases 49.3 15.1 10.9 7.8 $6.2 $4.3 $5.0

Tt $830.3 $127 $206.2 $495.9 $.2 $4.3 $5.0
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Significant Accounting Estimates

The consolidated interim unaudited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally

accepted accounting principles For discussion of all
significant accounting policies refer to Note of the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements included in Cls 2008 Annual Report Cl cames significant goodwill and
intangible

assets on its balance sheet Cl uses valuation models that use estimates of future market returns and sales and

redemptions of investment products as the primary determinants of fair value Cl has reassessed these key variables in

light
of the current economic ctimate Estimates of sales and redemptions are very likely

to change as economic

conditions either improve or detedorate whereas estimates of future market returns are less
likely to do so.The models

are most sensitive to current levels of assets under management and administration as well as estimates of future market

returns.While these balances are not currently impaired decline of 10% in the fair value of certain models may result

in an impairment of goodwill or other
intangibles

recorded on the balance sheet

Changes in Significant Accounting Policies

On January 2009 Cl adopted CICA Handbook Section 3064 Goodwill and Intangible Assets which replaces Section

3062 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and 3450 Research and Development Costs Section 3064 provides revised

guidance for the recognition measurement presentation and disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets.The adoption

of Section 3064 did not have material impact on the financial position or results of operations of Cl

Effective January 12009 Cl adopted retrospectively without restatement the CICA Emerging Issues Committee Abstract

EIC-l73 Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities EIC-173 requires Cls own credit risk and the

credit risk of the counterparty to be taken into account in determining the fair value of financial assets and liabilities

including derivative instruments.The adoption of EIC-l73 did not have material impact on the financial position or

results of operations of Cl

Future Accounting Changes

In june 2009 the Canadian Accounting Standards Board amended CICA Section 3862 Financial lnstjurnenrs

Disclosures adopting the amendments to IFRS Financial lnstruments Disclosures issued in March 2009.The amendments

are effective for annual financial statements
relating

to fiscal years ending after September 30 2009.The amendments to

Section 3862 require enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements including the relative
reliability

of the inputs

used in those measurements and about the
liquidity rislç of financial instruments Cl will adopt the amended standard in

the annual consolidated financial statements for the year ending December 31 2009.The adoption of this standard will

have no impact on the financial position or resufts of operations of Cl

In August 2009 the AcSB amended CICA Section 3855 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement and CICA

Section 3025 lrrrpoired Loans to converge with intemational standards lAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and

Measurement by changing the categories into which debt instruments are required or permitted to be classified

Requirements from lAS 39 have also been adopted permitting reclassification of financial assets from the held-for-trading

and available-for-sale categories into the loans and receivables category and specifying the circumstances in which such
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transfers can be made and the accounting for those transfers The amendments are effective for annual financial

statements beginning on or after November 12008 For interim financial statements issued on or after August 202009

an entity is permitted to choose which interim to apply these amendments within the year of adoption Cl will adopt

these amendments in the fourth quarter of 2009 The adoption of this standard will have no impact on the financial

position or results of operations of Cl

The Canadian Accounting Standards Board AcSB recently confirmed that effective January 2011 all
publicly

listed

companies will be required to prepare interim and annual financial reports in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards IFRS.These standards will replace Canadian generally accepted accounting principles çGAAP
Cl is developing comprehensive plan to assess the impact the changeover to IFRS in 2011 will have on its financial

statements In February 2008 the AcSB confirmed that all Canadian publicly accountable enterprises will be required to

adopt International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS for years beginning on or after Januajy 2011 Cl will adopt

IFRS for the year beginning January 2011 and will present the interim and annual consolidated financial statements

including comparative 2010 financial statements in accordance with IFRS

CI has developed transition plan for the changeover to IFRS Cl has completed its assessment of the differences

between IFRS and Canadian GAAP Cl is currently in the process of assessing the impact IFRS has on accounting policies

and implementation decisions information technology and data systems financial statement presentation and disclosures

inter-nal control over financial reporting disclosure controls and procedures and business activities including the impact

on debt covenants Following this assessment an implementation plan will be developed to transition Cls financial

reporting process including internal controls and information systems to IFRS Cl is also in the process of documenting

the impact of each of the IFRS standards and the alternatives available upon adoption.The impact these differences may

have on the financial results has not yet been determined and will be an ongoing process as the International Accounting

Standards Board and the AcSB issue new standards and recommendations During 2010 CI will internally report its

financial results in accordance with IFRS in preparation of adoption on January 2011

Disclosure Controls and Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have designed or caused the design of the Internal Controls

over Financial Reporting ICFR and Disclosure Controls and Procedures There has been no material weaknesses

identified i-elating to the design of the ICFR and there has been no changes to Cls internal controls for the quarter ended

September 30 2009 that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the internal controls over

financial reporting

Additional information relating
to CI including the most recent audited financial statements management information

circular and annual information form are available on SEDAR at wsswsedarcom
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Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income unaudfted

for the three-month period ended September 30

2009 2008

fin
thou5ands dollars except per sha amounts

REVENUE

Nianagement fees 273461 302693

Administration fees 28333 30634

Redemption fees 6832 8301

Gan on sale of marketable securities 3193

Other income 8172

318736 349800

EXPENSES

Selling general and administrative 73191 60529

Trailer fees note 79025 88072

Investment dealer fees 21829 24034

Amortization of deferred sales commosions and fund contracts 41433 37633

Interest 91 7801 0705

Other 4718 61

Restructuring costs 0000

Impairment of available-for-sale assets 5000

227997 242087

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 90739 077

Provision for recovery of income taxes

Current 2175 1053

Future 22186 17115

24361 16.062

Net income from continuing operations for the period 66378 23775

Net loss from discontinued operations for the period note 2J 48972 5644

Net income for the period 17406 18131

Other comprehensive loss net of tax

Unrealized gain loss on available-for-sale financial assets

net of income taxes of $4 $275 25 1470

Reversal of
gain to net income on avaflable-for-sale financial assets

net of income taxes of 174 nil 1031

Total other comprehensive loss net of tax 1006 1470

Comprehensive income 16400 16661

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations note 7dJ $0.23 $0.44

Basic and diluted earnings per share note 7dJ $0.06 $0.42

ce nccompcnying notes
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Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income unaudrted

for the nine-month period ended September 30

2009 2008

thomonds of dollors except per shoe amounts

REVENUE

Management fees 753570 920563

Administration fees 82405 02578

Redemption fees 22960 26572

Gain loss on sale of marketable securities 2904

Other income 23154 27450

884993 1077161

EXPENSES

Selling general and administrative 204069 194671

Trailer fees 9j 216224 2e5338

Investment dealer fees 62475 80339

Amortization of deferred sales commissions and fund contracts 121902 1083

Interest 20658 35398

Other 13488 7903

Restructuring costs 0000

Impairment of available-for-sale assets 5000

638816 716963

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 246177 360 98

Provision for recovery of income taxes

Current 4062 3790

Future 69848 42.878

65786 39088

Net income from continuing operations for the period 180391 399286

Net loss from discontinued operations for the period note 2J 53575 71 10

Net income for the period 126816 392.176

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Unrealized gain loss on available-for-sale financial assets

net of income taxes of $4 $837 52 4.478

Reversal of loss to net income on available-for-sale financial assets

net of income taxes of $44 --
nil

233

Total other comprehensive income loss net of tax 285 4478

Comprehensive income 127101 387698

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations note 7dJ $0.62 .43

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 7dJ $0.61 $1.42

Basic and diluted earnings per share $0.43 .40

see accompanying notes
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2009 2008

tIiOiJS3n0S of dollars

OPERATING ACTMTJES

rJet income from continuing operations for the period 66378 23775

Add deduct items not involving
cash

Gain on sale of marketable securities 3193

Impairment of available-for-sale assets 5000

Equity-based compensation 11264 8857

Amortization of deferred sales commissions and fund contracts 41433 37633

Amortization of other 1639 3132

Future income taxes 22186 17115

139707 43568

Net change in non-cash working capital balances elated to operations 9480

Cash provided by continuing operating activities 149187 49838

Cash provided by used in discontinued operating activities 6600 42817

Cash provided by operating activities 155787 10702

INVESTING ACTIVITiES

Purchase of marketable securities IS 750

Proceeds on sale of marketable securities 7649

Additions to capital assets 1627 3486

Deferred sales commssions paid 34358 44056

Additions to other assets 2422

Dispostion of other assets 2312

Cash used in continuing investing activities 26039 5074

Cash provided by discontinued investing activties 1.022 709

Cash used in
investing

activities 25017 49005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows unaudited

for the three-month period ended September 30

6270

corttinued
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows unaudfted

for the three-month period ended September 30

2009 2008

in thousands of dollars

FINANCING ACTiVITIES

Increase decrease in long-term debt 90499 61850

Repurchase of share capital 7oi1 475 23.432

Dividends
paid to shareholders 43842 141804

Cash used in
financing

activities 134816 103386

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the period 4046 45370

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 53267 78939

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 49221 33569

Cash and cash equivalents related to

Continuing operations 25593 21080

Discontinued operations 23628 2.489

49221 33569

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Interest paid 13273 8338

Income taxes paid 2293 2694

see occonporly/ng notes
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows unaudited

for the nine-month period ended September 30

2009 2008

in thousands of dollars

OPERATING ACTIVES

Nlet income from continuing operations for the period 180391 399286

Add deduct items not invoIng cash

Gain on sale of marketable securities foote 2904

Impairment of available-for-sale assets 5000

Equity-based compensation 22492 25476

Amortization of deferred sales commissions and fund contracts 121.902 108314

Amortization of other 5182 8563

Future income t.ares 69848 142878

396911 4528

Net change in non-cash working capital balances related to operations 38793 33218

Cash provided by continuing operating activities 435704 486029

Cash used in discontinued operating activities 26151 15288

Cash provided by operating activities 409553 470741

INVESTING ACTIVfl1ES

Purchase of marketable securities IS 1200

Proceeds on sale of marketable securities 7649 1947

Additions to capital assets 2566 7810

Deferred sales commissions paid 13964 151237

Additions to other assets 3439

Disposition of other assets 19053

Cash
paid on acqusition 1205

Cash used in continuing investing
activities 91048 161739

Cash provided by discontinued investing activities 4866 1998

Cash used in
investing

activities 86182 159741

continued
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows iunaLldited

for the nine-month period ended September 30

2009 2008

in thousands of dollars

FINANCING ACTiVITIES

Increase decrease in long-term debt 218400 99.9

Repurchase of share capital 7ai 15981 1027 16

Issuance of share capital 7a 47

Dividends paid to shareholders 19850 430078

Cash used in financing activities 354231 332837

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the period 30860 21837

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period 80081 55406

Cash and cash equivalents end of period 49221 33569

Cash and cash equivalents related to

Continuing operations 25593 21080

Discontinued operations 23628 12489

49221 33569

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Interest
paid 20771 30484

Income taxes paid 6447 9586

see accompanying notes
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Consolidated Balanced Sheets unaudited

As at September 30 2009 As at December 31 2008

in auojnds of dollars

ASSETS

Current

Cash and cash equivalents 25593 35 168

Client and trust funds on deposit 109498 108150

Securities owned at market

Marketable securities 6377 10774

Accounts receivable and prepaid epenses 109433 127414

Future ncome taxes 6862 31

Assets held-for-sale 536318 454673

Total current assets 794081 736210

Capital assets net 18386 21002

Deferred sales commissions net of accumulated

amortization of $549543 2008 $475227 584507 588935

Fund contracts 101 1248 10147S7

Goodwill 1051285 1051285

47149 72702Other assets

Assets held-for-sale 65747 129248

3572403 3614139

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities rote 9j 132702 6697

Dividends payable 29352

Client and trust funds payable 108728 10L297

Income taxes payable 9271 16660

Equit7-hased compensation 7L 22587 95

Preferred shares issued by subsidiary 20406

Current portion of long-term debt and 97625 187388

Liabilities held-foisale 513765 420251

Total current liabilities 934436 848388

Long-term debt friotes .3 and 9/ 683375 81201

Preferred shares issued by subsidiary
19678

Future income taxes 388443 332348

Total liabilities 2006254 2012427

Shareholders equity

Share captal fnote 7iu/ 2005805 19859 12

Contributed surplus 21958 47587

Detcit 461274 431162

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 340 625

Total shareholders equity 1566149 1601712

3572403 3614139

see accompariving notecl
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity unaudited

for the three-month period ended September 30

2009 2008

in thousands of dollars

SHARE CAPITAL 7ol

Balance beginning of period 2.004761 1779656

Share repurchase net of issuance of share capital on vesting of

deferred equity units 1044 7373

Balance end of period 2005805 1.772283

CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS

Balance beginning of period 22119 46362

Compensation expense for deferred equity unit plan 538 2751

Issuance of share capital on vesting of deferred equity units 699 538

Balance end of period 21958 48575

DEFICIT

Balance beginning of period 434486 437504

Net income for the period 17406 18131

Cost of shares -epurchased in excess of stated value 276 15521

Dividends declared 43918 141423

Balance end of period 461274 47637

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS

Balance beginning of period 666 2159

Other comprehensive loss 1006 1470

Balance end of period 340 3629

Net change in shareholders equity during the period 269 45443

Shareholders equity beginning of period 1593060 .386353

Shareholders equity end of period 1566149 1.340 12

see accompanyIng notes
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity unaudfted

for the nine-month period ended September 30

2009 2008

tl ousnnds
o1 doIlor

SHARE CAPITAL 6o
Balance beginning of period 1985912 1788501

lsuance of share capital

Share repurchase net of issuance of share capital on vesting of

deferred equity units 19893 16265

Balance end of period 2005805 772283

CONTRJBUTED SURPLUS

Balance beginning of period 47587 39300

Compensation expense for deferred equity unit plan 1975 22050

Issuance of share capital on vesting of deferred equity units 27604 12775

Balance end of period 21958 48575

DEFICIT

Balance beginning of period 431162 377983

Net ncome for the period 126816 392176

Cost of shares repurchased in excess of stated value 7726 73674

Dividends declared 149202 41b836

Balance end of period 461274 476317

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS

Balance beginning of period 625 849

Other comprehensive income loss 285 4478

Balance end of period 340 3629

Net change in shareholders equity during the period 35563 I07S5

Shareholders equity beginning of period 1601712 1450667

Shareholders equity end of period 1566149 1340912
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

fin
thousands of dollars except per share amounts

September 30 2009 and 2008

Cl Financial Corp is incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario Cis primary business is the management

and distribution of broad range of financial products and services ncluding mutual funds segregated funds financial planning

insurance investment advice wealth management and estate and succession planning

On January 2009 Cl Financial Income Fund converted by way of Plan of Arrangement Conversion to

corporation known as Cl Financial Corp Under the Conversion unrtholders of Cl Financial Income Fund exchanged each of

their trust units unit and Class limited partner units of Canadian International LP unit for

common shares of Cl Financial Corp on one-for-one basis

These consolidated financial statements reflect Cl as corporation subsequent to December 31 2008 and as an income trust

prior to the Conversion All references to shares refer collectively to the common shares subsequent to December 31

2008 and to Trust and Exchangeable LP units prior to the Conversion All references to dividends refer
collectively to

payments to shareholders subsequent to December 31 2008 and to unitholders prior to Conversion

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted

accounting principles except that certain disclosures required for annual financial statements have not been

included Accordingly the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 2008 The unaudfted interim consolidated financial

statements have been prepared on basis consistent with the accounting policies set out in the audited annual consolidated

financial statements

Change in Accounting Policies

On January 2009 Cl adopted retrospectively CiCA Handbook Section 3064 Goodwill and
Intangible

Assets which replaces

Section 3062 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and 3450 Rcseanh and Development Costs Section 3064 provides revised

guidance for the recognition measurement presentation and disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets The adoption of

Section 3064 did not have material impact on the financial position or results of operations of Cl

Effective january 2009 adopted retrospectively without restatement CICA Emerging Issues Committee Abstract EIC

173 Credit Risk and the Fair Vdlue of Financial Assets and Liabilities EIC- 173 requires Cls own credit risk and the credit risk of

the counterpaity to be taken into account in determining the fair value of financial assets and liabilities including derivative

instruments The adoption of EIC- 73 did not have material impact on the financial position or results of operations of Cl

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On October 26 2009 Cl announced that it had reached an agreement to sell the retail brokerage division of Blackmont

Capital Inc for $93.3 million Cl expects this transaction to close on December 31 2009 subject to regulatory

approval Cl expects to sell the remaining capital markets division of Blackmont in the next months Blackmonts results

from operations haie been reported as discontinued operations and comparative statements and related notes have been

reclassified All assets and liabilities of Blackmont have been classified on the balance sheet as held-for-sale The results of

operations of Biackrnont have been excluded from the asset administration segment Cl recorded loss of $47322

after transaction costs of $5.0 million on the sae presented as an impairment of goodwill
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fin
thousands of dollars except per share amounts

September 30 2009 and 2008

Summanzed 4nancial information for the discontinued operations is as follows

Three-month period ended Nine-month period ended

September 30 September 30

2009 2008 2009 2008

thousands

Revenue

Admmttration fees 24557 29400 76533 04724

Other income 975 .902 3389 5673

25532 3I302 79922 0.397

Expenses

Seihng general and administrative 15612 9735 49.084 58084

Investment dealerfees 10050 16124 31856 53636

Interest 62

RestrudLinng charge .000 000

Impairment of goodwifi 47322 47322

Other 1886 2294 5969 6764

74873 39168 134237 119546

Loss from dacontnued operations

before income taxes 49341 7866 54315 9149

Provsion for recovery Of ncome taxes

Current 19 48 127 144

Future 388 2270 867 2183

369 2.222 740 2039

Net loss from dacontinued operations 48972 5644 53575 71 10

Bavc and diluted loss per share 0.17 0.02 0.18 0.03
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in thousands of dollars except per share amounts

September 30 2009 and 2008

As at September 30 2009 As at December 2008

Current assets held-for-sale

Cash and cash equivalents 23628 449

Client and trust funds on deposft 317609 225460

Securities owned at market 33669 34776

Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 161412 49524

536318 454673

Long-term assets held-for-sale

Capital assets net 7376 8850

Future income taxes 17383 19621

Goodwill 19883 74599

Other assets 21105 26.178

65747 129248

Total assets held-for-sale 602065 583921

Current liabdities held-for-sale

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 32685 46998

Client and trust funds payable 466641 362058

Securities sold short at market 14439 119

Total liabilities held-for-sale 513765 420251

et assets heid-for-saie 88.300 163670

LONG TERM DEBT

During the quarter ended September 30 2009 Cls revolving credit facility was amended to reduce the amount that may be

borrowed to $900000 Under the amended terms of this facility amounts may be borrowed in Canadian dollars through

prime rate loans which bear interest at the greater of the banks prime rate plus .50% and the Canadian Deposit Offering

Rate plus 225% or hankers acceptances which bear interest at bankers acceptance rates plus 2.50% Amounts may also he

borrowed in U.S dollars through base rate loans which bear interest at the greater of the banks reference rate for loans

made by it in Canada in U.S funds
plus

50% and the federal funds overnight rate plus
2.25% or LiBOR loans which bear

interest at LiBOR plus 250%

Cl may also borrow under this facility in the form of letters of credit which bear fee of 2.50% on any undrawn portion As

at September 30 2009 Cl had accessed $480 31 2008 $600 by way of letters of credit

The credit facility contains number of financial covenants that require Cl to meet certain financial ratios and financial

condition tests On June 26 2009 the financial covenant regarding 1s assets under management was amended such that

they cannot fall below $35 billion for more than seven consecutive business days
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thousands of dollars except per share amounts

September 30 2009 and 2008

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments have been classifled on basis consistent with the presentation in the 2008 audfted consolidated financial

statements

In February 2009 other assets classified as available-for-sale of $8 76 was repaid to Cl

During the quarter ended September 30 2009 Cl recognized gain of $3.1 93 in net income on the sale of its
publicly

held

securities which were previously adjusted for impairment in the fourth quarter of 2008

RISK MANAGEMENT

Cls financial instruments are exposed to the risks as disclosed in the 2008 audited consolidated financial statements There

has been no significant change to these risk factors during the three and nine months ended September 30 2009

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Cls objectives in managing capital are to maintain capital structure that allows Cl to meet its growth strategies
and build

long-term shareholder value while satisfying its financial obligations and meeting its long-term debt covenants and minimum

regulatory capital requirements As at September 30 2009 CI met its current covenant and capital requirements

Cls capital consists of the following

As at September 302009 As at December 31 2008

Shareholders equity 566.149 1601712

Long-term debt 781.000 999.401

Freferred shares issued by subsidiary
20406 19678

Total capital 2367555 2.620.791

42



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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thousands of dollars except per share amounts

September 30 2009 and 2008

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized and issued

summary of the changes to Cls share capital pursuant to the Conversion from an Income trust to corporation on

January 2009 Is as follows

Units

Number of units

in thousands

Trust units balance December 31 2008 234757 1634200

Conversion to Cl common shares 34757 1634200

Trust units balance January 2009 and thereafter

Exchangeable LP units balance December 31 2008 57.736 351712

Conversion to Cl common shares 5773 351 .712

Exchangeable LP units balance January 2009 and thereafter

Number of units

Common Shares in thousands

Authorized

An unlimited number of common shares of Cl

Issued

Conversic.n from Cl Trust units 234757 1634200

Conversion from Exchangeable LP Ijnits 57736 351.7 12

ssuance of share capital on release of deferred equity units 101 25180

Common share repurchase 990 6894

Common shares balance March 31 2009 292518 2.004198

Issuance of share capital on release of deferred equity units 73 1.725

Common share repurchase 195 1162

Common shares balance June 30 2009 292396 2.004761

Issuance of share capital on release of deferred equity units 58 .242

Common share repurchase 29 98
Common shares balance September 30 2009 292425 2005805
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tin thousands of dollars except per share amountsj

September 30 2009 and 2008

Employee incentive stock option plan

sUmmary of the changes in Cls Employee Stock Option Plan is as follows

umber of options Weighted average

in thousands exercise price

Options outstanding December 2008 3438 17.03

Options granted 4084 11.60

Options cancelled 36 4114

Options outstanding March 31 2009 7386 13.58

Options exercisable March 31 2009 2328 17.48

Options granted 629 744

Opons cancelled 475 5.40

Options exercised 522 I79b

Options outstanding June 30 2009 7018 13.48

Options exercisable June 30 2009 1376 17.84

Options granted 20 18.10

Options cancelled 15 15.01

Options exercised 144 7.81

Options outstanding September 30 2009 6879 13.40

Options exercisable September 30 2009 1230 17.81

Options outstanding and exercisable as at September 30 2009 are as follows

Number of Weighted average Number of

Exercise price options outstanding remaining contractual life options exercisable

in thousands years in thousands

1.60 3963 4.4

l2.57 965 4.2

5.59 359 4.5

7.04 512 0.7 512

18.10 20 4.8

8.15 677 0.8 677

820 341 47

18.94 1.2

l.34 0.8

20.02 0.6

23.06 10 I.4

23.09

26.70 0.2

11.60 to 26.70 6879 3.7 1230
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Compensation trust

summary of the changes in the DEU Awards outstanding and the common shares repurchased by the compensation trust

for the DEU Plan is as follows

Number of DEUs

in thousands

DEU Awards outstandin December 31 2008 2000

Granted 71

Vested 1015

DEU Awards outstanding March 12009 1156

Cancelled 77

Vested 73

DEU Awards outstanding June 30 2009 1006

Granted

Cancelled 27

Vested 29

DEU Awards outstanding September 30 2009 952

Common shares held by the compensation trust December 2008 21

Released 105
Common shares held by the compensation trust March 31 2009 1096

Shares repurchased for DEU Plan 100

Released 73

Common shares held by the compensation trust June 30 2009 123

Released 58

Common shares held by the compensation trust September 30 2009 1065

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The weighted average number of common shares outstanding were as follows

For the nine months For the three months For the nine months For the three months

in thousands ended Sept 30 2009 ended Sept 30 2009 ended Sept 30 2008 ended Sept 30 2008

Basic 292675 292396 278970 278186

Diluted 294023 293195 280215 27384
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fln thousands of dollars except per share amounts

September 30 2009 and 2008

Maximum share dilution

The following table presents the maximum number of common shares that would be outstanding fall the outstanding options

as at October 31 2009 were exercised

in thousands

Common shares outstanding at October 31 2009 292174

DEU Awards outstanding 943

Options to purchase common shares 6861

299978

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

Cl has two reportable segments Asset Management and Asset Administration.These segments reflect Cls internal financial

reporting and performance measurement

The Asset Management segment includes the operating results and financial position of Cl Investments and United excluding

AWl which derive their revenues principally from the fees earned on the management of several families of mutual and

segregated funds

The Asset Administration segment includes the operating results and financial position of AWNI and its subsidiaries including

Assante Capital Management Ltd and Assante Financial Management Ltd.These companies derive their revenues principally

from commissions and Ides earned on the sale of mutual funds and other financial products and ongoing service to clients
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thousands of dollars except per share amountsj

September 30 2009 and 2008

Segmented information for the three month period ended September 30 is as follows

Asset Management Asset Administration

For the three months ended September 30 2009 2008 2009 2008

in thousands

Nianagement fees 273461 302693

Administration fees 48065 54687

Other revenues 10685 10389 6257 6084

Total revenues 284 146 3082 54322 6077

Selling general and administrative 61075 46214 12116 14315

Trailer fees 82242 91S42

Investment dealer fees 37614 43870

Amortization of deferred sales commissions

and fund contracts 41950 37983 376 376

Other expenses 3662 5772 1056 342

Total expenses 188929 181511 51162 58903

Income before income taxes and

non-segmented items 95217 131571 3160 1868

Restructurng charges

Adjustment to marketable securtties

Interest expense

Provision for/recovery of income taxes

Net income from continuing operations
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fin thousands of dollars except per share amounts

September 30 2009 and 2008

Intersegment Eliminations Total

For the three months ended September 30 2009 2006 2009 2008

in thousands

Management fees 273461 302.693

Administrationees 19732 24053 28333 30634

Other revenues 16942 16473

Total revenues 19732 24053 318736 349800

SeIing general and administrative 73191 60529

Trater fees 3217 3470 79025 88072

Investment dealer fees 15785 19836 21829 24034

Amortza6on of deferred sales commissions

and fund contracts 893 726 41433 37b33

Other expenses 4718 61 14

Total expenses 19895 24032 220196 216.382

Income before income taxes and

non-segmented items 163 98540 133418

Restructurng charges 10.000

Adjustment to marketable secunhes 5.000

Interest expense 7801 10.705

Provision for/recovery of income taxes 24361 6.062

Net income from continuing operations 66378 23775
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un thousands of dollars except per share amounts

September 30 2009 and 2008

Segmented information for the nine month period ended September 30 is as follows

Asset Management Asset Administration

For the nine months ended September 30 2009 2008 2009 2008

in thousands

Management fees 753570 920563

Administration fees 142440 78278

Other revenues 29169 31247 19849 9773

Total revenues 782739 954810 162289 198051

Selling general and administrative 165.850 49.880 38219 44791

Traier fees 225413 276782

Investment dealer fees 10588 42863

Amortzation of deferred sales commissions

and fund contracts 123335 109245 1128 1128

Other expenses 10905 6620 2583 1283

Total expenses 525503 552527 152518 190065

Income before income taxes and

non-segmented items 257236 402283 9771 7986

Restructuring charges

Adjustment to marketable securities

interest expense

Provision for/recovery of income taxes

Net income from continuing operations

As at As at As at As at

Sept 30 2009 Dec 31 2008 Sept 30 2009 Dec 31 2008

Identifiable assets 1675476 1773533 860840 803607

Goodwill 858703 858703 192582 192582

Total assets 2534179 2632236 1053422 996189

Including assets held-for-sale
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fin
thousands of dollars except per share amounts

September 30 2009 and 2008

Intersegment Eliminations Total

For the nine months ended September 30 2009 2008 2009 2008

in thousands

Management fees 753570 920563

Administration fees 60035 75700 82405 02578

Other revenues 49018 54020

Total revenues 60035 75700 884993 1077161

Selling general and administrative 204069 194671

Traiier fees 9189 1444 216224 265338

investment dealer fees 48113 62524 62475 80339

Amorhzation of deferred sales commissions

and fund contracts 2561 2059 121902 108314

Other expenses 13488 17903

Total expenses 59863 76027 618158 666565

Income before income taxes and

non-segmented items 172 327 266835 410596

Restructunng charges 10000

Adjustment to marketable secunties 5000

nterest expense 20658 35.398

Provision for/recovery of income taxes 65786 39088

Net income from continuing operations 180391 399286

As at As at As at As at

Sept 30 2009 Dec 31 2008 Sept 30 2009 Dec 31 2008

identifiable assets 15198 14286 2521118 2562854

Goodwill 1051285 1051285

Total assets 15198 14286 3572403 3614139

Including .sssets held-for-sale

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Cl entered into transactions related to the advisory and distribution of its mutual funds with Scotiabank These transactions

were in the normal course of operations and were recorded at the agreed upon exchange amounts During the three

mntbs ended September 30 2009 Cl incurred charges for deferred sales commissions of $526 and trailer fees of $1498

which were paid or payable to Scotiabank The balance payable to Scotiabank as at September 30 2009 of $510

31 21308 $422 is included in accounts parable and accrued liabilities

Scotabank the administrative agent for Cls revolving credit facility As at September 30 2009 Cl had drawn long-term debt

of $781000 31 2008 $999.40 in the form of bankers acceptances of $781000 SI 2008
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$990.00 and prime rate loan of $nil 3l 2008 $9400 During the three months ended September 30

2009 interest standby and stamping fees of $7693 was recorded as interest expense months ended September 30

2009 $20389

During 2008 Ci provided demand loan to one of its managed funds pursuant to promissory note agreement The loan

facility
is for maximum of $50 million and interest is calculated at market rates As at September 30 2009 $nil

December 31 2008 $32605 is outstanding including accrued interest and is included in accounts receivable and prepaid

expenses During the three months ended September 30 2009 interest of $74 months ended September 30 2009

$608 and nine months ended September 30 2008 $33 and $40 respectively was recorded and included in other

income

JO FUTURE ACCOUNTING CHANGE

In June 2009 the Canadian Accounting Standards Board amended CICA Section 3862 Financial Instruments

Disclosures adopting the amendments to IFRS Financial Instruments Disclosures issued in March 2009.The amendments are

effective for annual flnancial statements relating to fiscal years ending after September 30 2009.The amendments to Section

3862 require enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements including
the relative

reliabilty
of the

inputs
used in those

measurements and about the liquidity risk of financial instruments Cl will adopt the amended standard in the annual

consolidated financial statements for the year ending December 31 2009The adoption of this standard will have no impact

on the financial position or results of operations of Cl

in August 2009 the AcSB amended CICA Section 3855 Financial lnstiuments Recognition arrd Measurement and CICA

Section 3025 impaired Loans to converge with international standards lAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition rind

Measurement by changing the categories into which debt instruments are required or permitted to be classified

Requirements fl-am lAS 39 have also been adopted permitting reclassification of financial assets from the held-for-trading and

available-forsale categories into the loans and receivables category and specifying the circumstances in which such transfers

can be made and the accounting for those transfers.The amendments are effective for annual financial statements beginning

on or after November 2008 For interim financial statements issued on or after August 20 2009 an entity
is permitted to

choose which interim to apply these amendments wfthin the year of adoption Cl will adopt these amendments in the fourth

quarter of 2009.The adoption of this standard will have no impact on the financial position or results of operations of Cl

II COMPARATIVE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation of the current consolidated financial

statements

12 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Board of Directors approved debt refinancing proposal which includes public offering of approximately $500 million

under Cls $1 billion shelf prospectus
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This Report contains fbrward-laokng statement.s with respect to including its business operations and
strategy

and financial

perfbrmance and condition Although rnanaFernent believes that the expectations reflected in such forwardlooking statements are

reocanahl such statements involve risks and uncertaintiesActual sults may ciiftdr materially from those expressed or mplied by

fbrwordIookino stcmtenents Factors that could cause resu/ts to differ materially include airmorig
other

things general economic

and market
fhctors including interest rates business competition changes in government regulations or in tax laws and other factors

dmscused in rnatenais filed with applicable secumities regulatory
authorities from time to ii ne

On lovember 2009 the Board of Directors declared monthly cash dividends of $006 per share payable on

December 15 2009 january and February 2010 to shareholders of record on November 30 December 31 2009 and

Ianuary 31 2010 respectively
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